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1

(1) Thomas Corcoran 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 1/10/2016 to 
3/10/2016 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family and 
being a person who was 
influential within the 
traveller community and 
whose presence 
commanded a following. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.50 
and Exhibit AS/50 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

2 3/10/2016 to 
10/10/2016 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Arbury Avenue, 
Bedworth. 

The encampment 
comprised 15 caravans and 
associated vehicles.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.50 
and Exhibit AS/50 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 
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the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family and 
being a person who was 
influential within the 
traveller community and 
whose presence 
commanded a following.  

3 3/6/2018 to 
6/6/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 10 caravans and 
associated vehicles.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: littering, the 
breaking of a lock to 
access the site, human 
defecation on the land and 
the dismantling of a fence 
to gain access to a 
neighbouring field when 
vacating the site (which 
vacation occurred 
following a s77 CJPO Act 
1994 notice to leave the 
land). The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1223. 
The Discovery Academy 
school was required to 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.22 
and Exhibit AS/22 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 7 

First Witness 
Statement of 
Martyn Stephens 
para 9 
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close for five days as a 
result of the disruption, 
anti-social behaviour and 
litter caused by the 
encampment.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family and 
being a person who was 
influential within the 
traveller community and 
whose presence 
commanded a following.  

4 9/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the Defendant and his 
infant child at the time, but 
obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
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on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a neighbouring 
site (Gala Fields, 
Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 
fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being positively 
identified as being present 
by Police Officers, and by 
reason of the Corcoran 
family being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family. 

para 17 and Exhibit 
CI/7 

5 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15
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The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being positively 
identified as being present 
by Police Officers and 
Officers of the First 
Claimant, and by reason of 
the Corcoran family being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family. 

Further, the Defendant is 
also placed at the 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 
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encampment by reason of 
him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SM18 FAJ, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

6 15/8/2018 to 
25/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Jubilee Sports 
Centre, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A height 
restriction barrier was 
forced/removed to gain 
access to the site. Reports 
of threats to the sports 
centre staff were received, 
and of children associated 
with the encampment 
riding quad bikes on the 
football pitch and 
damaging the grass. Litter, 
including human 
excrement and used toilet 
paper, was left at the site 
on the vacation of the site. 
The cost incurred by the 
First Claimant in relation 
to this encampment was 
£3891.

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.16 
and Exhibit AS/16 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 9 

Exhibit PR/9 to the 
First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson  
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The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family and 
being a person who was 
influential within the 
traveller community and 
whose presence 
commanded a following.  

7 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 18 and 
Exhibits CI/8 and 
CI/9
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of the Corcoran family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family. 

Further, the Defendant is 
also placed at the 
encampment by reason of 
him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 UYE, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

8 25/9/2018 to 
6/10/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

By reason of the 
Defendant’s 
circumstances, the 
Defendant was offered a 
28 day licence by which 
his occupation of the site, 
along with 12 caravans, 
would be tolerated, subject 
to licence conditions 
prohibiting nuisance and 
anti-social behaviour. In 
breach of that licence, the 
Defendant allowed in 
excess of 12 caravans to 
occupy the land, and 
several breaches of the 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
51 to 54 and 
Exhibits PR/7 and 
PR/8 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 23 to 32 

10



9

licence conditions relating 
to anti-social behaviour 
and nuisance also occurred 

The encampment was 
removed from the land by 
way of a court order 
obtained after the service 
of a s77 CJPO Act 1994 
notice. 

9 6/10/2018 to 
15/10/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The encampment moved to 
the site following its 
removal from the 
abovementioned site at the 
Gala Fields. The 
encampment again 
required the use of the s77 
CJPO Act 1994 procedure.  

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: the barrier to the 
site was damaged to secure 
entry. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.10 
and Exhibit AS/10 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
55 to 56 
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the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family and 
being a person who was 
influential within the 
traveller community and 
whose presence 
commanded a following. 
Further, this encampment 
was identified as being the 
same encampment which 
had moved from the Gala 
Fields, at which the 
Defendant was present. 

10 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 
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the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 
at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family and 
being a person who was 
influential within the 
traveller community and 
whose presence 
commanded a following. 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 UYE, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.

13
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11 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran family and 
being a person who was 
influential within the 
traveller community and 
whose presence 
commanded a following. 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being 
associated with the vehicle 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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bearing the registration 
number SL18 UYE, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 
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(2) Jessica Dodds (referred to as “(2) Jessica Dodd” on the Claim Form) 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 1/10/2016 to 
3/10/2016 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.50 
and Exhibit AS/50 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

2 3/10/2016 to 
10/10/2016 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Arbury Avenue, 
Bedworth. 

The encampment 
comprised 15 caravans and 
associated vehicles.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.50 
and Exhibit AS/50 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 
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families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

3 3/6/2018 to 
6/6/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 10 caravans and 
associated vehicles.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: littering, the 
breaking of a lock to 
access the site, human 
defecation on the land and 
the dismantling of a fence 
to gain access to a 
neighbouring field when 
vacating the site (which 
vacation occurred 
following a s77 CJPO Act 
1994 notice to leave the 
land). The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1223. 
The Discovery Academy 
school was required to 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.22 
and Exhibit AS/22 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 7 

First Witness 
Statement of 
Martyn Stephens 
para 9 
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close for five days as a 
result of the disruption, 
anti-social behaviour and 
litter caused by the 
encampment.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

4 9/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the First Defendant and his 
infant child (with whom 
the Defendant was 
travelling) at the time, but 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
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obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 
on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a neighbouring 
site (Gala Fields, 
Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 
fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment (and the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran, being positively 
identified as being present 
by Police Officers) and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

para 17 and Exhibit 
CI/7 

5 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 

19



5

at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment (and the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran, being positively 
identified as being present 

Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 
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by Police Officers) and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

Further, the Defendant is 
also placed at the 
encampment by reason of 
her husband (the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran) being the 
registered keeper of the 
vehicle bearing the 
registration number SM18 
FAJ, which vehicle was 
present at the encampment. 

6 15/6/2018 to 
25/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Jubilee Sports 
Centre, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A height 
restriction barrier was 
forced/removed to gain 
access to the site. Reports 
of threats to the sports 
centre staff were received, 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.16 
and Exhibit AS/16 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 9 

Exhibit PR/9 to the 
First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson 
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and of children associated 
with the encampment 
riding quad bikes on the 
football pitch and 
damaging the grass. Litter, 
including human 
excrement and used toilet 
paper, was left at the site 
on the vacation of the site. 
The encampment was 
associate with the 
following aggravating 
factors. The cost incurred 
by the First Caimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £3891. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

7 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
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The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of her being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 JXU, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

Further, the Defendant is 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of the Corcoran 
and Dodd families being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 18 and 
Exhibits CI/8 and 
CI/9 
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Further still, the Defendant 
is also placed at the 
encampment by reason of 
her husband (the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran) being the 
registered keeper of the 
vehicle bearing the 
registration number SL18 
UYE, which vehicle was 
present at the encampment. 

8 25/9/2018 to 
6/10/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

By reason of the First 
Defendant’s 
circumstances, who is the 
Defendant’s husband and 
with whom the Defendant 
was travelling, he was 
offered a 28 day licence by 
which his occupation of 
the site, along with 12 
caravans, would be 
tolerated, subject to licence 
conditions prohibiting 
nuisance and anti-social 
behaviour. In breach of 
that licence, the First 
Defendant allowed in 
excess of 12 caravans to 
occupy the land, and 
several breaches of the 
licence conditions relating 
to anti-social behaviour 
and nuisance also occurred

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
51 to 54 and 
Exhibits PR/7 and 
PR/8 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 23 to 32 
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The encampment was 
removed from the land by 
way of a court order 
obtained after the service 
of a s77 CJPO Act 1994 
notice. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Police being aware 
that the Defendant 
travelled with the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran, to whom the 
aforementioned licence 
was granted. 

9 6/10/2018 to 
15/10/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The encampment moved to 
the site following its 
removal from the 
abovementioned site at the 
Gala Fields. The 
encampment again 
required the use of the s77 
CJPO Act 1994 procedure.  

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: the barrier to the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.10 
and Exhibit AS/10 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
55 to 56 
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site was damaged to secure 
entry. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

Further, this encampment 
was identified as being the 
same encampment which 
had moved from the Gala 
Fields, at which the 
Defendant was present. 

10 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60
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The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 
at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran).

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 
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The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of the First 
Defendant, with whom she 
travelled, being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
SL18 UYE, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

11 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Corcoran and Dodd 
families being identified as 
one of the constituent 
families of the 
encampment, and the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
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Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Corcoran and Dodd 
families (her being the 
wife of the First 
Defendant, Thomas 
Corcoran). 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of the First 
Defendant, with whom she 
travelled, being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
SL18 UYE, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(3) Michael Doyle 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 
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keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 JXT, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

2 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 

31



3

at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
SL18 JXT, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

3 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 
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SL18 JXT, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(4) Luke Delaney 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 9/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the First Defendant and his 
infant child (with whom 
the Defendant was 
travelling) at the time, but 
obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 
on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a site (Gala 
Fields, Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 
fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 11 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 17 and Exhibit 
CI/7 
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The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SK67 PNY, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

2 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

Further, the Defendant is 
also placed at the 
encampment by reason of 
him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 JXU, which 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
and Exhibits CI/8 
and CI/9 
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vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

3 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 
at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 
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relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Delaney family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Delaney family. 

4 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Delaney family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
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Defendant travelled with 
the Delaney family. 

and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(5) Patrick McGinley 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 
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keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SN17 OEA, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

2 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SN17 OEA, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
and Exhibits CI/8 
and CI/9 

3 7/9/2018 to 
13/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 11 and Exhibit 
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at Donnithorne Avenue, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: littering, including 
by way of human 
excrement. The First 
Claimant incurred costs of 
£4512 as a result of this 
encampment. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
SN17 OEA, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

CI/2 (encampment 
no. 39) 

4 13/9/2018 to 
14/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Angle grinders 
were used to break the 
barrier to the site, and the 
travellers then blocked 
access to the site. It was 
also reported that youths 
associated with the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.11 
and Exhibit AS/11 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 14 
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encampment tore down 
fencing to access the site. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number MM15 WVE, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment. 

5 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
SN17 OEA, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment.

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibits CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(6) Alphonsus McGinley 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the First Defendant and his 
infant child (who were 
present at the 
encampment) at the time, 
but obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 
on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a site (Gala 
Fields, Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 
fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 11 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 
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The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number BL66 XGK, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  
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(7) Michael Stokes 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 
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keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number LM67 WZX, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

2 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number LM67 WZK, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 18 and 
Exhibits CI/8 and 
CI/9 

3 13/9/2018 to 
14/9/2018

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
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at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Angle grinders 
were used to break the 
barrier to the site, and the 
travellers then blocked 
access to the site. It was 
also reported that youths 
associated with the 
encampment tore down 
fencing to access the site. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicles 
bearing the registration 
numbers SN67 ZNR and 
SN18 LOF which vehicles 
were present at the 
encampment. 

Scrutton para 5.11 
and Exhibit AS/11 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 14 

4 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area.

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
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The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 
at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Stokes family being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Stokes family.  

Richardson paras 
57 to 60 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 

5 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
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at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Stokes family being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Stokes family.  

Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(8) Michael Stokes 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 13/9/2018 to 
14/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Angle grinders 
were used to break the 
barrier to the site, and the 
travellers then blocked 
access to the site. It was 
also reported that youths 
associated with the 
encampment tore down 
fencing to access the site. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number ND13 DZE which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.11 
and Exhibit AS/11 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 14 
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(9) Dennis Stokes 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 
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keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 UYD, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

2 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 
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at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Stokes family being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Stokes family. 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 UYD, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

3 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73
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when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Stokes family being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Stokes family.  

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 UYD, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(10) Dennis Stokes Jnr 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 3/10/2016 to 
10/10/2016 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Arbury Avenue, 
Bedworth. 

The encampment 
comprised 15 caravans and 
associated vehicles.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Stokes family being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Stokes family. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.50 
and Exhibit AS/50 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

2 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95
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broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being the 
registered keeper of the 
vehicle bearing the 
registration number SL18 
UYD, which vehicle was 
present at the encampment. 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 

3 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60
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The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 
at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Stokes family being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Stokes family. 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being 
associated with the vehicle 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 
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bearing the registration 
number SL18 UYD, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

4 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Stokes family being 
identified as one of the 
constituent families of the 
encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Stokes family.  

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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number SL18 UYD, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 
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(11) Brian Stokes 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 
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registered keeper of the 
vehicle bearing the 
registration number LN09 
SXF, which vehicle was 
present at the encampment. 
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(12) John Maughan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/7/2017 to 
9/7/2017 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Slingsby Close, 
Attleborough Industrial 
Estate, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 3 caravans. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.36 
and Exhibit AS/36 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

2 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 
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the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number BJ64 TNE, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 18 and 
Exhibits CI/8 and 
CI/9 

3 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 
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the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. A 
vehicle registration 
number (BF64 TNE) 
similar to that associated 
with the Defendant (BJ64 
TNE) was recorded as 
present at the encampment. 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(13) Terry Maughan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 
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keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SN66 WZX, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

2 15/8/2018 to 
25/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Jubilee Sports 
Centre, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A height 
restriction barrier was 
forced/removed to gain 
access to the site. Reports 
of threats to the sports 
centre staff were received, 
and of children associated 
with the encampment 
riding quad bikes on the 
football pitch and 
damaging the grass. Litter, 
including human 
excrement and used toilet 
paper, was left at the site 
on the vacation of the site. 
The encampment was 
associate with the 
following aggravating 
factors. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.16 
and Exhibit AS/16 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 9 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 38) 

Exhibit PR/9 to the 
First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson 
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relation to this 
encampment was £3891. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SN66 WZX, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

3 7/9/2018 to 
13/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Donnithorne Avenue, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans and 
was associated with 
littering at the site, 
including with human 
excrement. The 
encampment caused the 
First Claimant to incur 
costs in the sum of £4512.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SN68 UHS, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 11 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 39) 

4 13/9/2018 to 
14/9/2018

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
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at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Angle grinders 
were used to break the 
barrier to the site, and the 
travellers then blocked 
access to the site. It was 
also reported that youths 
associated with the 
encampment tore down 
fencing to access the site. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
numbers SN68 UHS, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment. 

Scrutton para 5.11 
and Exhibit AS/11 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 14 

5 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73
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when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(15) Patrick Maughan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 15 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 
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keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number YN15 UNV, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

2 7/9/2018 to 
13/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Donnithorne Avenue, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans and 
was associated with 
littering at the site, 
including with human 
excrement. The 
encampment caused the 
First Claimant to incur 
costs on the sum of £4512.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number YN15 UNV, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 11 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 39) 

3 6/10/2018 to 
15/10/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.10 
and Exhibit AS/10 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7
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following aggravating 
factors: the barrier to the 
site was damaged to secure 
entry. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number YN15 UNV, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
55 to 56 

Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
41) to the Witness 
Statement of Carol 
Ingleston 

4 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 
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of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 
at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
YN15 UNV, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

5 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 
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centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(16) Owen Maughan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 13/9/2018 to 
14/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Angle grinders 
were used to break the 
barrier to the site, and the 
travellers then blocked 
access to the site. It was 
also reported that youths 
associated with the 
encampment tore down 
fencing to access the site. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number ND62 HWJ, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.11 
and Exhibit AS/11 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 14 

2 28/9/2018 The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The Defendant. The 
Defendant is placed at the 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 23 to 32 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
40)  
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encampment by reason of 
the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number ND62 HWJ, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

The encampment was 
formed following the First 
Claimant offering to the 
First Defendant (by reason 
of the Defendant’s 
circumstances) a 28 day 
licence by which his 
occupation of the site, 
along with 12 caravans, 
would be tolerated, subject 
to licence conditions 
prohibiting nuisance and 
anti-social behaviour. In 
breach of that licence, the 
First Defendant allowed in 
excess of 12 caravans to 
occupy the land, including 
the Defendant, and several 
breaches of the licence 
conditions relating to anti-
social behaviour and 
nuisance also occurred 

The encampment was 
removed from the land by 
way of a court order 
obtained after the service 
of a s77 CJPO Act 1994 
notice. 

77



3

3 6/10/2018 to 
15/10/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: the barrier to the 
site was damaged to secure 
entry. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number ND62 HWJ, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.10 
and Exhibit AS/10 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
55 to 56 

Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
41) to the Witness 
Statement of Carol 
Ingleston 

4 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60 
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following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 
exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 
at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
ND62 HWJ, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 

5 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans.

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 

79



5

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number ND62 HWJ, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment. 

Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 

80



1

(17) Owen Maughan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 9/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the First Defendant and his 
infant child (with whom 
the Defendant was 
travelling) at the time, but 
obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 
on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a site (Gala 
Fields, Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 
fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 11 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 17 and Exhibit 
CI/7 
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The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number FL18 XZZ, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

2 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(20) Francis Maughan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 6/8/2018 to 
16/8/2018  

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Reports were 
received that members of 
the encampment had 
broken height restricted 
barriers to gain entry to the 
site, that dogs associated 
with the encampment had 
attacked the general public 
and their dogs, and the 
riding of quad bikes at the 
site. Litter, including 
human excrement and used 
toilet paper, was left at the 
site on the vacation of the 
site. The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £2937. 

The Defendant is also 
placed at the encampment 
by reason of him being 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.17 
and Exhibit AS/17 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
45 to 50 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 8 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 36) 
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associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number HG67 OJV, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

2 15/8/2018 to 
25/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Jubilee Sports 
Centre, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
30 to 35 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A height 
restriction barrier was 
forced/removed to gain 
access to the site. Reports 
of threats to the sports 
centre staff were received, 
and of children associated 
with the encampment 
riding quad bikes on the 
football pitch and 
damaging the grass. Litter, 
including human 
excrement and used toilet 
paper, was left at the site 
on the vacation of the site. 
The encampment was 
associate with the 
following aggravating 
factors. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.16 
and Exhibit AS/16 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 9 

Exhibit PR/9 to the 
First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson 
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relation to this 
encampment was £3891. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
HG67 OJV, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment.  

3 7/9/2018 to 
13/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Donnithorne Avenue, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans and 
was associated with 
littering at the site, 
including with human 
excrement. The 
encampment caused the 
First Claimant to incur 
costs on the sum of £4512.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number HG67 OJV, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 11 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 39) 

4 13/9/2018 to 
14/9/2018

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
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at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Angle grinders 
were used to break the 
barrier to the site, and the 
travellers then blocked 
access to the site. It was 
also reported that youths 
associated with the 
encampment tore down 
fencing to access the site. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number HG67 OJV which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

Scrutton para 5.11 
and Exhibit AS/11 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 14 

5 6/10/2018 to 
15/10/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: the barrier to the 
site was damaged to secure 
entry. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.10 
and Exhibit AS/10 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
55 to 56
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The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
HG67 OJV, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 32 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 41) 

6 8/1/2019 to 
14/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
21 or 22 caravans, but 
which caravans had been 
part of a wider group of 
70+ caravans travelling in 
the area. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. A hedge was 
damaged by reason of the 
caravans driving through 
the hedge to access the 
site. Reports of anti-social 
behaviour by members of 
the encampment were 
received, including reports 
of verbal abuse towards 
the leisure centre staff. 
Concrete blocks were 
moved, preventing 
members of the public 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.2 
and Exhibit AS/2 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
57 to 60 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 36 and Exhibit 
CI/2 (encampment 
no. 43) 
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exiting the car park. Litter, 
including human 
excrement, was left behind 
at the site upon vacation of 
the site. The cost incurred 
by the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1330. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
HG67 OJV, which vehicle 
was present at the 
encampment. 

7 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
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of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. 

44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(21) Martin Maughan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 9/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the First Defendant and his 
infant child (with whom 
the Defendant was 
travelling) at the time, but 
obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 
on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a neighbouring 
site (Gala Fields, 
Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 11 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 17 and Exhibit 
CI/7 
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fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number SL18 UVO, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

2 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2
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Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. 
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(22) Thomas Maughan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 27/7/2018 to 
1/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Keresley Communtiy 
Centre, Howat Road. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. The travellers 
forming the encampment 
were reported to have 
forced entry to the site, to 
have driven over the 
football pitch at the site 
and to have threatened 
members of the public 
with violence.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number WK18 YDL, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.18 
and Exhibit AS/18 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 13 

Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
35) to the Witness 
Statement of Carol 
Ingleston  

2 14/1/2019 to 
24/1/2019 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Playing Fields, 
Avenue Road, Nuneaton.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.1 
and Exhibit AS/1 
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The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Youths associated 
with the encampment were 
reported to be abusive 
when asked to leave the 
neighbouring leisure 
centre, and damaged a 
wall.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Maughan family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the Maughan family. 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
60 and 73 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 37 and 39 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
44) and Exhibit 
CI/10 

Witness Statement 
of Robert Watson 
and Exhibits RW/1 
and RW/2 
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(23) John Mongan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number AO15 WJF, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 18 and 
Exhibits CI/8 and 
CI/9 
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(25) Martin Mongan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 9/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the First Defendant and his 
infant child (with whom 
the Defendant was 
travelling) at the time, but 
obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 
on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a site (Gala 
Fields, Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 
fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and 11 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 17 and Exhibit 
CI/7 
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The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number AV13 OHZ, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

2 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number HJ18 BUH, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 18 and 
Exhibits CI/8 and 
CI/9 
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(26) Leonard Mongan 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 9/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the First Defendant (with 
whom the Defendant was 
travelling) and his infant 
child at the time, but 
obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 
on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a site (Gala 
Fields, Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 
fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and 11 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 17 and Exhibit 
CI/7 
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The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number HJ18 EFT, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  
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(27) Paul McDonagh (referred to as “(27) Paul McDonaugh” on the Claim Form) 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 19/5/2017 The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Community Centre, 
Keresley Road, Keresley 
End. 

The encampment 
comprised 15 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: cutting the lock on 
the security bollard, 
aggressive and threatening 
behaviour towards a 
representative of the 
community centre. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the McDonaugh family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the McDonaugh family. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.39 
and Exhibit AS/39 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

2 18/6/2017 to 
19/7/2017 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Elliot Park, Barling 
Way, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 10 caravans and 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.38 
and Exhibit AS/38 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
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was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: the padlock to the 
gate was forced and 
concrete bollards damaged. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the McDonaugh family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the McDonaugh family.  

Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

3 3/6/2018 to 
6/6/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 10 caravans and 
associated vehicles.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: littering, the 
breaking of a lock to 
access the site, human 
defecation on the land and 
the dismantling of a fence 
to gain access to a 
neighbouring field when 
vacating the site (which 
vacation occurred 
following a s77 CJPO Act 
1994 notice to leave the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.22 
and Exhibit AS/22 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 7 

First Witness 
Statement of 
Martyn Stephens 
para 9 
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land). The cost incurred by 
the First Claimant in 
relation to this 
encampment was £1223. 
The Discovery Academy 
school was required to 
close for five days as a 
result of the disruption, 
anti-social behaviour and 
litter caused by the 
encampment.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the McDonaugh family 
being identified as one of 
the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the McDonaugh family. 

4 21/6/2018 to 
4/7/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road and Dunns Close, 
Caldwell Industrial Estate, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with anti-
social behaviour in the 
local area.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the McDonaugh family 
being identified as one of 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.20 
and Exhibit AS/20 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 10 

Exhibit CI/2 to the 
Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
(encampment no. 
34) 
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the constituent families of 
the encampment, and the 
Police being aware that the 
Defendant travelled with 
the McDonaugh family. 

5 13/9/2018 to 
14/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Angle grinders 
were used to break the 
barrier to the site, and the 
travellers then blocked 
access to the site. It was 
also reported that youths 
associated with the 
encampment tore down 
fencing to access the site. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number DV18 BEJ which 
vehicles was present at the 
encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.11 
and Exhibit AS/11 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 14 
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(29) Bernard McDonagh (referred to as “(29) Bernard McDonaugh” on the Claim Form) 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 21/6/2018 to 
4/7/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road and Dunns Close, 
Caldwell Industrial Estate, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with anti-
social behaviour in the 
local area.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number HX18 TWJ, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.20 
and Exhibit AS/20 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 10 

Exhibit CI/2 to the 
Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
(encampment no. 
34) 
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(30) John McDonagh (referred to as “(30) John McDonaugh” on the Claim Form) 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 21/6/2018 to 
4/7/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road and Dunns Close, 
Caldwell Industrial Estate, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with anti-
social behaviour in the 
local area.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number HX18 TWJ, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.20 
and Exhibit AS/20 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 10 

Exhibit CI/2 to the 
Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
(encampment no. 
34) 
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(31) Mike McDonagh (referred to as “(31) Mike McDonaugh” on the Claim Form) 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 21/6/2018 to 
4/7/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road and Dunns Close, 
Caldwell Industrial Estate, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with anti-
social behaviour in the 
local area.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number HGZ8090, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.20 
and Exhibit AS/20 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 10 

Exhibit CI/2 to the 
Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
(encampment no. 
34) 
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(32) Martin McDonagh (referred to as “(32) Martin McDonaugh” on the Claim Form) 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 21/6/2018 to 
4/7/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road and Dunns Close, 
Caldwell Industrial Estate, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with anti-
social behaviour in the 
local area.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number FN18 HEJ, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.20 
and Exhibit AS/20 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 10 

Exhibit CI/2 to the 
Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
(encampment no. 
34) 
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(33) Aaron McDonagh (referred to as “(33) Aaron McDonaugh” on the Claim Form) 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 9/7/2018 to 
6/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment initially 
comprised 10 caravans, but 
later expanded. The 
Discovery Academy 
school, which uses the 
land, agreed to tolerate the 
encampment until 6 
August 2018 given the 
personal circumstances of 
the First Defendant (with 
whom the Defendant was 
travelling) and his infant 
child at the time, but 
obtained an order for 
possession to take effect 
on that date. Upon 
vacation, the encampment 
occupied a site (Gala 
Fields, Nuneaton). 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: human defecation 
at the site, throwing of 
objects at mobility 
impaired informants, dog 
fighting and the riding of 
quad bikes. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.19 
and Exhibit AS/19 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and 11 

First Witness 
Statement of Phillip 
Richardson paras 
40 to 44 and para 
95 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 17 and Exhibit 
CI/7 
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The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number LS18 XXB, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

111



1

(35) Winnie McDonaugh 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 21/6/2018 to 
4/7/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road and Dunns Close, 
Caldwell Industrial Estate, 
Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with anti-
social behaviour in the 
local area.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number FN18 HEJ, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.20 
and Exhibit AS/20 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 10 

Exhibit CI/2 to the 
Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
(encampment no. 
34) 
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(38) Michael Ward 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number YD18 NLX, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton paras 4 to 
7 and para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 18 and 
Exhibits CI/8 and 
CI/9 
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(39) Kathleen Ward 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 13/9/2018 to 
14/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Vernon’s Lane, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Angle grinders 
were used to break the 
barrier to the site, and the 
travellers then blocked 
access to the site. It was 
also reported that youths 
associated with the 
encampment tore down 
fencing to access the site. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of her being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number LG64 AEM, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment. 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.11 
and Exhibit AS/11 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 14 
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(41) Bernie Sweeney 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 27/7/2018 to 
1/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Keresley Communtiy 
Centre, Howat Road. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. The travellers 
forming the encampment 
were reported to have 
forced entry to the site, to 
have driven over the 
football pitch at the site 
and to have threatened 
members of the public 
with violence.  

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number NV17 NLL, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.18 
and Exhibit AS/18 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 13 

Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
35) to the Witness 
Statement of Carol 
Ingleston  
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(42) John Connors 

No. Date Allegation Reference Response Reference Claimant 
response 

Judge’s 
finding 

1 24/8/2018 to 
30/8/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Pingles Leisure Centre 
car park, Avenue Road, 
Nuneaton.  

The encampment 
comprised approximately 
40 caravans. 

The encampment was 
associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors. Anti-social 
behaviour in and around 
the Pingles Leisure Centre, 
human defecation at the 
site, increased incidents of 
theft at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre and local shops. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being the registered 
keeper of the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number EO18 VVW, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.15 
and Exhibit AS/15 

Second Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 12 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
88 and 97 

Witness Statement 
of Adele Glenn 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 18 and 
Exhibits CI/8 and 
CI/9 

2 7/9/2018 to 
13/9/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at Donnithorne Avenue, 
Nuneaton.

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
para 11 and Exhibit 
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The encampment 
comprised 21 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: littering, including 
by way of human 
excrement. The First 
Claimant incurred costs of 
£4512 as a result of this 
encampment. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of him being associated 
with the vehicle bearing 
the registration number 
EO18 VVW, which 
vehicle was present at the 
encampment. 

CI/2 (encampment 
no. 39) 

3 28/9/2018 The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Gala Fields, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The Defendant. The 
Defendant is placed at the 
encampment by reason of 
the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number EO18 VVW, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

The encampment was 
formed following the First 
Claimant offering to the 

Witness Statement 
of Carol Ingleston 
paras 23 to 32 and 
Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
40)  
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First Defendant (by reason 
of the First Defendant’s 
circumstances) a 28 day 
licence by which his 
occupation of the site, 
along with 12 caravans, 
would be tolerated, subject 
to licence conditions 
prohibiting nuisance and 
anti-social behaviour. In 
breach of that licence, the 
First Defendant allowed in 
excess of 12 caravans to 
occupy the land, including 
the Defendant, and several 
breaches of the licence 
conditions relating to anti-
social behaviour and 
nuisance also occurred 

The encampment was 
removed from the land by 
way of a court order 
obtained after the service 
of a s77 CJPO Act 1994 
notice. 

4 6/10/2018 to 
15/10/2018 

The Defendant formed an 
unauthorised encampment 
at the Pingles Leisure 
Centre car park, Avenue 
Road, Nuneaton. 

The encampment 
comprised 14 caravans and 
was associated with the 
following aggravating 
factors: the barrier to the 

First Witness 
Statement of Sgt 
Scrutton para 5.10 
and Exhibit AS/10 

First Witness 
Statement of Philip 
Richardson paras 
55 to 56 

Exhibit CI/2 
(encampment no. 
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site was damaged to secure 
entry. 

The Defendant is placed at 
the encampment by reason 
of the Defendant being 
associated with the vehicle 
bearing the registration 
number EO18 VVW, 
which vehicle was present 
at the encampment.  

41) to the Witness 
Statement of Carol 
Ingleston 
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